UNITED CRC

NATIONS

Di str.

Convention on the GENERAL
Rights of the Child CRC/ O/ SR. 348

14 January 1997
Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Fourteent h session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 348t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Wednesday, 8 January 1997, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: Ms. BELEMBAOCGO
CONTENTS

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BCDI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES

REVI EW OF DEVELOPMENTS RELEVANT TO THE WORK OF THE COW TTEE

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to the
O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the neetings of the Conmittee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after
the end of the session

GE. 97-15033 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.05 p.m

COOPERATI ON W TH OTHER UNI TED NATI ONS BODI ES, SPECI ALI ZED AGENCI ES AND OTHER
COVPETENT BODI ES (agenda item 6)

1. The CHAI RPERSON invited the representatives of the United Nations
Children's Fund (UNICEF) to report on the work of that organization, with
particul ar reference to the International Code of Marketing of Breast MIKk
Substi t ut es.

2. Ms. MLLER (United Nations Children's Fund) said that the idea of
meeting the Cormittee had largely arisen fromthe new m ssion statenent for
UNICEF to the effect that it should be guided in all aspects of its work by
the Covenant on the Rights of the Child. Menbers of the staff of the UN CEF
Nutrition Section had given sone thought to the ways in which their work on
breast-feeding and nutrition issues related to that on the rights of the
child. It was to be hoped that the discussion would prove nutually beneficia
and that the Commttee would be able to assist in pronoting the cause of
breast-feeding and the inplenentation of the International Code of Mrketing
of Breast M|k Substitutes.

3. Ms. LHOTSKA (United Nations Children's Fund) illustrating her
presentation by nmeans of transparencies, outlined the well-known benefits of
breast-feeding in terns of cost, nutrition and the better health of the nother
and the infant resulting inter alia fromgreater protection against infection
Recent research had highlighted the di sadvantages of artificial breast-mlKk
substitutes, even for infants in the industrialized countries, such as the

i ncreased risk of acute and lifelong chronic illnesses and sl ower nenta

devel opnent. The risk levels were, of course, considerably higher in the
devel opi ng countri es.

4, It was worth noting that, in the devel oped world, artificial feeding was
linked to high rates of sudden infant death syndrone (SIDS) and a greater risk
of infant nortality in general as well as to increased risk of cancer and
anaem a anong nothers. Mreover, it had been proved that there was little

di fference between the breast nmilk of well-nourished and nmal nouri shed not hers
and that supplenmenting the nother's diet was always preferable to resorting to
artificial feeding.

5. The information available clearly indicated that it was essential to
create conditions for successful breast-feeding, as recognized in many

i nternational instrunments, including the 1990 Innocenti Declaration on the
Protection, Pronotion and Support of Breast-feeding. UN CEF and the Wrld
Heal th Organi zation (WHO were actively involved in assisting Governments to
meet the four targets set in that Declaration

6. A significant degree of success had been achieved in inproving attitudes
in hospitals worldw de through the Baby-friendly hospital initiative.

However, changes in the health-care system would not suffice. The confidence
of the nother was a key factor in the breast-feeding process and could easily
be harmed by the inappropriate marketing of substitute products. Hence the



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 3

enphasi s placed on protecting wonen from such canpai gns through the
i mpl enentation of the International Code of Marketing of Breast MIKk
Substi t ut es.

7. M. CLARK (United Nations Children's Fund) said that the UN CEF
Nutrition Section had adopted a new approach to its work which focused on
rights rather than needs. |In connection with its work on the Internationa
Code of Marketing of Breast M|k Substitutes and through its cooperation with
WHO and ot her agencies, it had devel oped expertise and tools which m ght prove
useful in pronoting the rights enshrined in the Covenant and in assisting
Governnments to honour their obligations thereunder. The Conmittee's views on
that issue would be nobst wel cone.

8. By way of background information, he said that it was the Joint
WHO' UNI CEF Meeting on Infant and Young Child Feeding held in 1979 which had
first highlighted the need for international regulations for the marketing of
breast-m | k substitutes. As shown by the statenment and recomendati ons
adopted at that Meeting, the participants had recogni zed the benefits of
breast-feeding and the responsibility of society to pronote it and had al so
identified msinformati on as one of the main obstacles to be overcome in the
attai nment of better health and nutrition

9. As a result, the International Code had been adopted two years |ater by
the Thirty-Fourth World Health Assenbly. However, because the Code had been
adopted in the formof a recommendation rather than a regulation, it was not
bi ndi ng on Governnents, which were nmerely urged to translate it into their
national legislation (art. 11.1). Furthernore, although the World Health
Assenbly had call ed upon industry to conply with the provisions of the Code
(art. 11.3), experience had shown that industry was not prepared to do so in
t he absence of enforceable |egislation

10. The ains of the Code included the protection of the right of every child
to adequate nourishnent and health, it being recognized that breast-feeding

af forded the best neans of providing the ideal food and was an i nportant
aspect of primary health care. That right was to be protected by ensuring
that breast-m |k substitutes should not be narketed in the same way as ot her
food products in order to safeguard nothers agai nst m sl eading information or
advertising. It was essential that parents should be made fully aware of the
benefits of breast-feeding and the risks of artificial feeding before making
their choice

11. He drew attention in that connection to article 24 of the Convention
whi ch recogni zed the right of the child to the enjoynent of the highest

attai nabl e standard of health and called upon States parties to take
appropriate neasures inter alia to conbat disease and malnutrition and to
create greater awareness of the advantages of breast-feeding. The framers of
the Convention had clearly recogni zed the benefits of breast-feeding and its
role in attaining the highest possible standard of health. That was thus an
area in which the basic thrust of the Code and the Convention overl apped.

12. The International Code exhibited links with a nunmber of other
i nternational instrunments, including the 1990 Innocenti Declaration on the
Protection, Pronotion and Support of Breast-feeding, which had subsequently



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 4

been endorsed by the Wrld Health Assenbly and the UNI CEF Executive Board.

One of the operational targets of the Declaration had been that, by the year
1995, all Governments should have taken action to give effect to the
principles and ains of all the articles of the International Code and
subsequent relevant World Health Assenbly resolutions in their entirety. That
target had not been achieved: nenber States had nerely been urged to

i mpl enent the International Code and many had not done so.

13. At the close of the 1990 Wrld Sunmit for Children, the Plan of Action
for Implementing the World Declaration on the Survival, Protection and

Devel opment of Children in the 1990s had called for the enmpowernent of al
wonen to breast-feed their children exclusively for four to six nonths and to
conti nue breast-feeding, with conplenentary food, well into the second year

14. The Worl d Declaration and Plan of Action for Nutrition, arising out of
the 1992 International Conference on Nutrition, had pledged to reduce
substantially within the decade social and other inpedinments to optina
breast-feeding. Article 33 of the Plan of Action specified that Governnments,
in cooperation with all concerned parties, should prevent food-borne and

wat er - borne di seases and other infections in infants and young children by
encouragi ng and enabl i ng wonen to breast-feed exclusively during the first
four to six nonths of their children's lives.

15. The Platformfor Action fromthe Fourth Wrld Conference on Wnen
(Beijing, 1995) had called for the pronotion of public information on the
benefits of breast-feeding, the inplenmentation of the International Code, and
the facilitation of breast-feeding by working wonen.

16. The World Health Assenbly had al so periodically adopted resol utions on

i nfant and young child nutrition, calling the attention of menber States to
their duty to inplenent the International Code, and at times closing | oopholes
that had been revealed in the drafting of the Code. Copies of the rel evant
resol uti ons had been circulated to the nenbers of the Committee.

17. Lastly, although the 1979 Convention on the Elim nation of Al Forms of
Di scrim nation agai nst Wonen had predated the joint WHO UNI CEF Meeting on
Infant and Young Child Feeding, there were a few places in which it touched
upon the issue of breast-feeding. Article 10, subparagraph (h), referred to
access to specific educational information to help to ensure the health and
wel | -being of fam lies, including information and advice on famly planning;
while article 12, paragraph 2, required States parties to ensure to women
appropriate services in connection with pregnancy, confinement and the
post-natal period, granting free services where necessary, as well as adequate
nutrition during pregnancy and | actation

18. The International Code sought to protect parents and children fromfalse
i nformati on by neans of various provisions. It placed the responsibility on
Governnments to ensure that objective and consistent information was provided
on infant and young child feeding; it prohibited the advertising of
breast-m |k substitutes, feeding bottles and teats, the provision of free
samples to nothers, their famlies and health workers, the pronotion of
products in health-care facilities (including free and | ow cost supplies),
visits to nothers by conpany sal es representatives, and the use of words or



CRC/ C/ SR. 348

page 5
pictures idealizing artificial feeding on the | abels of products. Information
provi ded to health workers nust be scientific and factual; information on

i nfant feeding should explain the benefits of breast-feeding and the costs and
hazards associated with artificial feeding; and unsuitable products, such as
sweet ened condensed nil k, should not be pronoted for babies.

19. The Code thus attenpted to halt the direct or nore insidious pronotion
of artificial products as equivalent or superior to breast mlk and the
pronmoti on of breast-m |k substitutes by conpanies through the health-care
system - a device whereby a negligible outlay on the provision of two or three
days' supply of infant fornula often secured a captive nmarket over a period of
si x nmonths or nore.

20. As to the state of inplenmentation of the Code throughout the world,
only 18 countries had incorporated all or npst of the provisions of the Code
into their donestic |legal systems. Factors inpeding the attainnent of the
target of universal adoption by 1995 included the fact that many Governments
sinply did not see inplenentation as a high priority; and opposition to

| egislation fromindustry, as exenplified by successful attenpts to bl ock

| egislation in Guatermal a and | ndi a.

21. UNI CEF worked with a nunber of mmjor partners in seeking to secure

i mpl enentati on of the Code, including WHO, the Internati onal Baby Food Action
Networ k (1 BFAN), and the Ml aysi a-based I nternati onal Code Docunentation
Centre (1CDC). |CDC organized training courses for government officials, and
had drafted a nodel |aw, copies of which had been circulated to the menbers of
the Committee, to assist countries wishing to incorporate the Internationa
Code into their |egal systens.

22. UNI CEF coul d al so, on request, provide direct assistance to countries in
drafting legislation. It was ready and willing to work with Governnents on
the issue, and believed that the Comrittee could play a valuable role in

rai sing the question of inplenentation of the International Code with

i ndi vi dual Governnents in the context of its consideration of their reports,

as well as inform ng Governnments of the technical assistance available to them
in that regard.

23. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the del egation of UNICEF for its statenents and
invited the menbers of the Conmittee to ask suppl enentary questions.

24. M. KOLOSOV asked which countries were the main nanufacturers and
exporters of breast-mlk substitutes. There was a growing trend in urban
areas for lactating nothers to work, yet maternity | eave was usually granted
for a period of only two to four nonths, so that it was unrealistic for those
nmot hers to continue to breast-feed beyond that period. Environnental effects
also mlitated agai nst continued breast-feeding. He wondered, therefore,
whether it was really advisable to prohibit the advertising of officially
approved breast-m |k substitutes, given that nmothers m ght then have recourse
to more harnful unofficial substitutes.

25. The CHAI RPERSON suggested that UNI CEF | ocal offices mght be encouraged
to provide the Conmittee with fuller information on breast-feeding in the




CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 6

various UNI CEF progranmme countries, in order to assist it inits
formul ati on of questions and reconmendations to States parties.

26. It was inportant to acknow edge that sone situations existed in which
breast-feedi ng was i npossi ble. She could confirm from her personal experience
t hat non-governmental organizations (NG3s) tended to show nore interest than
Governments in inplenenting the International Code. She had participated in a
nati onal awareness canpaign in her own country, Burkina Faso, which had
reveal ed a significant decline in breast-feeding even in rural areas. The
canpai gn i n Burkina Faso had succeeded in increasing the tine allocated to

nmot hers for breast-feeding in the workplace fromone hour to one and a half
hours daily over a period of 15 nonths - a snmall victory, but one that had
very significant inplications for wage costs in a country with limted

resour ces.

27. In addition to bringing donestic regulations into line with the

provi sions of the Code, it would perhaps be even nore fruitful to | ook at ways
of actively pronoting breast-feeding through various back-up neasures, such as
t he provision of nursery facilities in the workplace. To that end,
cooperation with mnistries of health and social affairs could usefully be
broadened to include cooperation with nministries of |abour

28. Lastly, she had heard it asserted that there was a 50 per cent risk of a
Hl V-positive nother transmitting the infection to her child through breast-
feeding. Could the representatives of UNI CEF confirmor correct that figure?

29. Ms. KARP asked what effect the recomrendati ons contained in the
I nternational Code m ght have on the recent social tendency for fathers to
play a nore active role in caring for infants.

30. M. CLARK (United Nations Children's Fund) said that the main

manuf acturers of breast-ml|lk substitutes were to be found in the United States
of Anerica, Europe and Japan. It was for that reason that inplenentation of
the Code had been unduly delayed in those countries and areas.

31. He wel comed the references to maternity | egislation by the Chairperson
and M. Kol osov: UN CEF did not, of course, see inplementation of the Code as
the only way of pronoting breast-feeding; maternity legislation also had a
valuable role to play in that regard. The Innocenti Declaration had called on
Governnments to exam ne ways of inplenenting imginative maternity-protection
measures so as to create an environment in which working wonmen could
breast-feed their children if they so desired.

32. The purpose of the International Code was not to regulate the production
of breast-m |k substitutes or ban their availability in shops: it recognized
that there was sonetines a genuine need for them It sought rather, to
reverse the trend whereby bottle-feeding, rather than breast-feeding, had cone
to be regarded as the norm wth serious inplications for babies' health.

33. Ms. LHOTSKA (United Nations Children’s Fund) said that the economnc

i npact of mlk substitutes was enornmous, given the six-month m ninmum for that
ki nd of feeding and the 40 half-kilo tins of the substitute that would be
required. That posed an inpossible financial burden, particularly in



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 7

devel opi ng countries and where a famly had nore than one child.
Nevert hel ess, bottle-feeding was becom ng nore prevalent in both the
rural and urban areas of nany countries.

34. One positive aspect that had energed was that, in some countries, a link
coul d be seen between feeding nethods and the education of the nother. In

i ndustrialized countries, the better educated she was, the nore likely she was
to choose to breast-feed her child. A sinmlar trend was expected to energe in
devel opi ng countries in the future.

35. There was no reason why there should be a conflict of interest in terms
of the father taking care of the child. There were many ways in which he
could be involved with and bond with his child that did not necessarily have
anything to do with feeding.

36. As things stood, research seened to indicate that one in three children
of an HI V-positive nother would contract the virus and that one in seven
children would be infected through breast-feeding. The figure of a

50 per cent rate of infection nentioned by the Chairperson had not been
verified.

37. M. KOOSOV said that the Governnent of the Russian Federation had taken
a keen interest in the Code in the context of efforts to revitalize the
donestic production of mlk substitutes. |In Russia, every nother was given
artificial mlIk products approxinmately two nmonths after the birth of the child
to supplement the nmilk she produced and provide additional nutrition that the
nmot her was often unable to provide. The fact that nothers received the
substitute mlk free of charge explained why the State was eager to build up
domestic production and reduce inports of artificial m |k products.

38. Ms. LHOTSKA (United Nations Children’s Fund) said that there was close
cooperation with the Fund’s partners in the Russian Federation. It was
heartening to see that the Baby-friendly hospital initiative had been taken so
seriously in Russia as part of ongoing international efforts to restore the
confidence of wonen, including those in Central and Eastern Europe, in their
ability to sustain breast-feeding for the recommended six-nmonth period and in
the quality of the m |k they produced.

39. The CHAI RPERSON t hanked the representatives of the United Nations
Children’s Fund for their answers to the questions put by members of the
Conmi ttee.

The neeting was suspended at 4.25 p.m and resuned at 4.40 p. m

REVI EW OF DEVELOPMENTS RELEVANT TO THE WORK OF THE COWM TTEE (agenda item 5)

40. Ms. SANTOS PAIS said that, at its fifty-first session, the
United Nations General Assenbly had adopted an ommi bus resol ution on the

protection and pronotion of the rights of children. It was the |ongest text
ever adopted on one particular itemin the field of human rights, had been
sponsored by 130 del egati ons and had been adopted by acclamation. |Its severa

chapters dealt with a variety of issues including the role of the Convention
and the Commttee.



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 8

41. The section on the protection of children affected by armed conflict
wel comed the report of the expert of the Secretary-General on the inpact of
armed conflict on children - which the Comrittee should rmake every effort to
follow up - and reconmended t he appoi ntnent of a special representative to

| ook at the inpact on children during his or her three-year nmandate.

42. The resolution also | ooked at the question of refugees and internally
di spl aced persons, and the sale of children and their sexual exploitation
including child prostitution and child pornography. The latter chapter

com ng on the heels of the World Congress agai nst Commerci al Sexua

Expl oitation of Children held at Stockholmin August 1996, was particularly
wel comre and based its approach |argely on the provisions of the Convention

43. In its section on child | abour, the resolution stressed the need for
Governnments to enact the |egislation necessary to inplenent obligations under
the Convention and to cooperate with the United Nations Children’s Fund

(UNI CEF) and International Labour Organization (ILO initiatives on the
eradication of all forns of child | abour

44, UNICEF' s report State of the World's Children 1997 dealt thoroughly with
the question of child | abour and recomended steps to ensure compul sory, free
and universal primary education for all children as a way of eradicating child
| abour, and advocated a range of other measures to ensure that children were
not being surreptitiously or erroneously put to work. An ILO report, entitled
Child Labour: Targeting the Intolerable, covered simlar ground but

hi ghl i ghted positive worl dwi de trends against child | abour and the recognition
by many Governments of the existing problem Even corporations, usually
guided only by the profit notive, were beginning to take a nore ethica
approach to the products they nanufactured and sol d.

45. A general comment on participation in civil and political rights had
been adopted by the Human Rights Commttee in 1996. Although the m ninmm
voting age was 18 years in nost of the States that reported to that Comm ttee,
it was not always the case. In many countries, efforts to i nmplenment the
Convention included procedures whereby elections by children on the rights of
children had been held, thus providing for early experience of the voting
process and i nvolvenent in issues that concerned them

46. She herself and M. Kol osov had visited Bern, Switzerland, to take part
in a neeting designed to prepare the ground for Switzerland s ratification of
the Convention. They had encouraged those present not to enter reservations
to the Convention. She had attended, with representatives of the Centre for
Human Ri ghts, a training course on the Convention for government officials,
whi ch was held at Turin, Italy.

47. In the regional context, the European Parlianment had adopted two
i mportant resolutions on children’s rights. Reference had been made,
inter alia, to the need to protect children from econonm c victim zation
elimnate the sexual exploitation of children and establish independent
institutions, of the onbudsperson type, in European countries.

48. M. KOOSOV said that it was nost regrettable that only half the nenbers
of the Conmttee were present. It mght have been better to have deferred



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 9

consideration of the agenda itemuntil nore of them had arrived. At the
concl udi ng press conference, the neeting described by Ms. Santos Pais m ght,
perhaps, be linked to the ommibus resolution of the General Assenmbly in order
to gain nedia attention. It was also regrettable that so few representatives
of NGCs were present. However, the statement by Ms. Santos Pais woul d be
reflected in the Conmittee' s records.

49. He woul d like to know which del egati ons had been the noving force behind
the omi bus resolution. [If, in the future, the Commttee had such infornmation
in advance, it mght be possible for its nmenbers to contact the del egations
concerned to advise on inportant points to be made in such a resolution

50. The CHAI RPERSON sai d that she, too, regretted that so few nenbers of
the Committee were present. It had not been possible to schedul e the agenda
itemfor later in the session. However, if an opportunity arose, the
Committee could return to the itemfor the benefit of the absent nenbers.
Many NGO representatives had told her of the difficulty they had in attending
all the Commttee's neetings, but stressed that they did try to attend
whenever possible.

51. Ms. KARP said that she would like to raise the question of cooperation
with other human rights treaty bodies, in particular the Commttee on
Econom ¢, Social and Cultural Rights. She had just read the Linburg
Princi pl es, which provided guidance for the inplenmentation of that Committee's
Convention. The Linburg Principles had been formul ated before the adopti on of
t he Convention on the Rights of the Child and said nothing about the economic
social and cultural rights of children. It mght be possible to suggest, at
the neeting of the chairpersons of the human rights commttees, that the parts
of the Convention on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights dealing with the
rights of children should be Iinked to the main Convention on the subject.

52. Ms. SANTOS PAIS said that she agreed with M. Kol osov that contacts
shoul d be established with delegations. The first draft of the omibus

resol uti on had been negotiated by the countries nenbers of the Latin American
Group and the European Union. Additional material had then been contributed
by African and other countries, so that the negotiations had becone very w de,
even involving the few countries that had not yet ratified the Convention

53. She al so agreed with Ms. Karp that another attenpt should be made to
establish contacts with other human rights treaty bodies. The Linburg
Principles were not an official United Nations docunment and there was no
reason why the Committee on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights should not
have nore to say about children's rights. It might be possible to arrange for
sessions of the two Conmittees to overlap by a few days so that informal joint
nmeetings could be held. That reconmendation nmight be nmade, yet again, in the
Committee's report.

54. The CHAI RPERSON said that the Comm ttee had al ready suggested to the
Secretariat that it should arrange for sessions to overlap. That had been the
case on one occasion. The reconmendation should certainly be repeated in the
report.




CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 10

55. M. KOOSOV said that, although the issue was a difficult one, because
of financial constraints, it would be very useful if one of the Comrittee's
sessions could be held in New York.

56. The CHAI RPERSON said that, if the Cormittee kept pressing the
suggestion, the neans for hol ding such a session mght be found. The
Conmittee on the Elimnation of Discrimnation agai nst Wonen was currently in
session in New York. It might be possible for the Conmttee to neet there at
the sane tinme of year. That reconmendati on should al so be nade in the report.

57. She herself and Ms. Badran had attended a neeting organi zed i n Decenber
by the United Nations Fund for Population Activities (UNFPA), which had
conprised representatives of the six treaty bodies, of United Nations bodies
and of sone international NGOs. The topic had been wonen's right to health,
and especially their right to reproductive and sexual hygiene.

58. It was the first tine that representatives of the six treaty bodies had
met under the auspices of a United Nations organ to discuss a topic of conmon
interest. They had reviewed each other's working nethods and the arrangenents
each of them had nmade to inplenent the recomendati ons of the Internationa
Conf erence on Popul ati on and Devel opnent and the Fourth World Conference on
Wonmen.

59. VWhile the Secretariat intended to provide the nenbers of the Committee
with a summary of the meeting's conclusions, she wished to draw attention to
two of its nost inportant recommendati ons, nanely, that such meetings should
become regul ar events and that “thematic days” should be held at the annua
meeti ngs of the chairpersons of the six treaty bodies. The first such neeting
woul d be devoted to the question of AIDS with a view to establishing conmon

pr ogr amres.

60. UNI CEF had al so organi zed neetings with herself and the chairperson of
the Conmittee on the Elimnation of Discrimnation against Wwnen. They had
been very encouraged by the positive attitude of the Executive Director of

UNI CEF, who had requested the UNI CEF unit concerned with children's rights to
make concrete suggestions for joint activities in the future.

61. The two chai rpersons had subsequently attended a press conference for
government del egations, United Nations bodies and NGOs. The exchanges had
been very interesting, and it was clear that many NGOs were willing to
contribute to the work of the two Conmittees especially by supplying
information on their own field activities. The governnment del egations, which
had al so been very encouragi ng, had thensel ves rai sed the question of

i ncreasing the nenbership of the Conmttee on the Rights of the Child. She
had, consequently, suggested that the Centre for Human Ri ghts should, at the
forthcom ng neeting of the States parties, raise the nmatter once again

62. There had al so been a neeting to celebrate the fiftieth anniversary of
UNI CEF, at which the Secretary-General had commended UNI CEF and the Committee
on their work and had encouraged themto continue their efforts.

63. A neeting on the followup to the Wrld Congress agai nst Comrmerci a
Sexual Exploitation of Children had di scussed the proposal by the



CRC/ C/ SR. 348
page 11

Hi gh Commi ssioner for Human Rights to establish sone kind of expert group on
the sale of children, child prostitution and child pornography, since the
Speci al Rapporteur on the topic was experiencing great difficulties in
carrying out his mandate. The neeting had al so provi ded an opportunity to
di scuss with representatives of NGOs having specific field progranmes
connected with the topic ways in which they could support the Specia
Rapporteur. She herself had given an account of what the Comittee had done
at its last session to follow up the reconmrendations of the World Congress.

64. Menmbers of the Conmittee had taken part in a field mssion to Morocco
and Egypt, and a closed neeting would be held later in the session to discuss
the followup to that m ssion. Perhaps the nost val uable neeting during the
m ssion had been one on the rights of wonmen and girls, the concl usions of

whi ch woul d be communicated to all the nmenbers of the Conmittee.

65. The President of the Egyptian parliament, who was al so President of the
Inter-Parlianmentary Union, had addressed the neeting and had expressed his
willingness to help. That was very inportant in view of the Cormittee's

desire that parlianents should take a closer interest in children's affairs.
It was to be hoped that he would convey the nessage to the Inter-Parlianentary
Uni on, and that practical action would result.

66. Ms. EUFEM O said that she herself and M ss Mason had attended a
four-day neeting for Asian countries on “nonitoring and reporting”. They had
i ntroduced the topic on the basis of the Cormittee's guidelines, and the
meeti ng had then broken up into smaller groups to simulate the nonitoring of a
report. It was regrettable that few of the participants in the nmeeting had
been nenbers of their countries' delegations to the Conmmttee.

67. The simul ati on had been a very interesting exercise, and the
partici pants had benefited fromcriticizing a report as if they were nenbers
of the Conmittee. It had been suggested, however, that it would be nore

useful if the menbers of the Conmittee were to visit individual countries to
nmeet the officials responsible for nmonitoring the rights of the child. She
tended to agree, but such an approach woul d, of course, be nmore costly and
ti me-consum ng. The Committee mi ght do nobre to encourage such practica
meetings since they inproved the participants' understanding of the
Conventi on.

The neeting rose at 5.30 p.m




